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Windmills have existed back into antiquity, as much for sawing and grinding grain as for pumping 

water. During pioneering of the American Great Plains windmills allowed agricultural development 

independent of natural surface water. That opportunity spurred, from the 1850s, midwestern 

industrial manufacture of drilling, pumping, and windmill technology, with metal windmills (often 

having wood blades) that could be packaged into kits and shipped by rail.

While hardly America’s breadbasket, Amesbury was still largely agricultural throughout the 19th 

century, with an agricultural fairground operating into the 1920s (J. G. Whittier had once been 

secretary) and still having farms on much of Cedar and Elm Streets. While the 1870s suffered a 

depressed economy that slowed business, closed the textile mills, and would have discouraged 

the expense of windmills, the 1880s saw recovery and growth that began creating modern 

Amesbury. Still, there was no centralized Amesbury water distribution system until the mid-1880s, 

which needed time to fully develop in town, and would not quickly benefit rural locations. The 

1880s thus saw occasional windmills poking up into Amesbury skies.
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Windmills in Amesbury

At right, a windmill of un-

determined ownership at 

the current Highland St. 

Health Center location. 

George W. Morrill is a 

possible candidate, whose 

mansion was on Morrill 

Place where the elder 

care facility is now. 

Windmill George W. Morrill house
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Urban Development of Elm Street Farmland
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There was a Collins enclave on Elm St. where Collins Ave. and St. are now. Out beyond that Elm 

St. had large vacant areas, some owned by Edmund Morrill and Edwin S. Lane, the latter a brother 

of Thomas W. Lane. Edmund Morrill lived in East Salisbury at the edge of the Plains, which was the 

expansive flat marsh between Rt. 1 and the beaches. Edwin Lane perhaps obtained his land from 

Morrill, and the two had large holdings from the north side of Elm St. down to the Powow River. 

Dudley Marston purchased his L-shape lot in 1882 from E. S. Lane, who had opened Oak and 

Oakland Streets.  
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Collins family enclave

Edwin S. Lane home and 

carriage complex

Dudley Marston 

home & land
Lane & Morrill
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This photo was taken from  Brown’s Hill, looking out over Elm Street. Most of these houses still exist. 

The railroad engine house would today back up against the paved walkway between Riverwalk and 

Oakland Street. Dudley Marston was a carriage wheel manufacturer who built his windmill and pump 

house in 1883 to match his Mansard house and carriage barn. This remains the first known windmill 

in town, the side street rapidly becoming known as Windmill Street. Edwin Lane built additional 

houses on Windmill, Oak, and Oakland Streets. Marston then removed his windmill in 1889, building 

there a side-by-side duplex house that still stands, and later another house in his L around on 

Oakland Street. This is the only photo found of any of the local windmills. 
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Dudley J. Marston Property & Windmill – Summer of 1887

RR engine house Marston’s houseMarston’s carriage barnMarston’s windmill & pumphouse
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the windmill at the corner of Marston and Oakland Streets

Marston Street then known as Windmill Street

1889-12-19, Villager, Page1

News Articles regarding Dudley J. Marston’s Home and Windmill
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A. N. Parry was the carriage- 

making son of carriage maker, 

Felix D. Parry. In 1884 he was 

advertising as also being the local 

agent for Stover windmills, 

suggesting a growing market. 

Farmers were generally the 

primary windmill buyers, but in 

the period before Amesbury had 

a centralized domestic water 

source (1884) there would also 

be in-town customers who would 

desire an automatically pumped 

water supply. Also, commercial 

water distribution would be slow 

to reach all over town, and even 

then, some people would 

continue relying on hand pumped 

wells, either public or their own.

These windmills were made by E. 

Stover & Brothers of Freeport, 

Illinois.

Augustus N. Parry – 1884 Carriage Maker & Purveyor of Windmills
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Two items from 1884-05-29, 

Weekly News, Page 3. Both 

carriages and windmills
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E. Stover & Brothers Windmills, Freeport, Illinois
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A. N. Parry’s advert on the previous page was taken from 

Stover’s general advert at right. Stover was in the Midwestern 

agricultural and industrial heartland spread across northern 

Ohio, Indiana, and Illinois, from which Amesbury received 

various carriagemaking iron wares, and later orders for 

boutique auto bodies. As seen above, the company made a 

range of hardware, including grinding mills, to be driven by 

their windmill. The installation at right powers both a water 

pump and a feed grinder for a cattle ranch, and the company 

notes applicability to other machining functions. Closer to 

home, the Joy brothers of Newmarket, New Hampshire made 

carriage jacks in a wood shop that at one time was powered 

by a windmill.
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1884-5 - the “Eclipse” Windmill
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Windmills had provisions for facing into winds, for power, and eventually for repositioning to drop 

load during high destructive winds. On the other hand, such protections were not always effective.

Eclipse windmill at the American House 

Hotel, which was on Main St. in what is now 

the parking lot of McGinnis Auctioneers.
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1884-04-25, Villager, Page5

1885-01-29, Villager, Page5

1884-05-29, Villager, Page5

1884-05-15, Villager, Page5

Eclipse windmill at Daniel Huntington farm 

(see next page), at the intersection of now 

Main Street and Rt. 110, by Captains Well. 

Eclipse windmills originated during the 1870s, 

with a high-wind protection device and then 

merged into Fairbanks Morse of Chicago 

during the 1890s.
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The Daniel Huntington Farm, Where the Middle School Is Now
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The Daniel Huntington properties: one was where the Middle School is now, the other is the still 

extant yellow colonial house next door, sideways to Main Street. The 1890 aerial map does not 

show a Huntington windmill.

Bartlett estate, now Cumberland Farms, at Bartlett’s corner

Route 110
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Locke & Jewell Factory at Mechanics Row, After Fire of 1887
1889 Sanborn Insurance Map, Sheet 1

DRIVE

SHAFT

The rebuilt Locke & Jewell factory has water tanks on its 3rd floor, plus a windmill that fills water 

tanks in the basement. Safety lamps are kerosene lamps that have burners specially designed to 

have extra airflow around them to prevent 

ignition of kerosene fumes. Despite such 

measures, the factory burned again in 1891. 

An interesting note is the drive shaft that 

provides power to the Charles Pettingell 

(misspelled on the map) factory next door. 
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Into the 1890s, Windmills Were Going Up and Coming Down
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Maxfield & Currier owned a large 

lumberyard on Railroad Avenue, and 

lived near each other around Rt. 110 at 

Bear Hill Road. This item at left appears 

to refer to their residences.  

1894-10-09, ADN, Page 1

1887-06-03, ADN, Page2 1899-03-08, ADN, Page 2

1894-12-27, ADN, Page 3

Elsewhere
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The Aermotor Windmill Company
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The above advert ran a number of times in the Amesbury Daily 

News around the turn of the century. Aermotor still exists, 

building metal-bladed windmills as seen at right. The blades are 

relatively broad, with curved airfoil shapes that are more 

efficient, higher lift, than flat narrow wood-slat blades that had 

been used on older windmills. The design emerged from 5000 

tests conducted on 61 different rotor designs conducted indoors 

under controlled conditions. The Aermotor, made in Chicago, 

was introduced in 1888 after which the company rapidly 

expanded. Manufacturing locations and company ownership 

changed several times over the decades. They moved to San 

Angelo, Texas in 1986 and are currently owned by a private 

group of West Texas ranchers. These devices are still sold and 

used in their originally intended environment.
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